Senate

COMMITTEE ON FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Minutes of Meeting -- April 22, 1969

The forty-seventh meeting of the Committee on Federal, State and Local Governments met on the 22nd day of April, 1969 at 10:00 A.M.

Committee members present:

James Gibson, Chairman Carl F. Dodge Warren Monroe Vernon Bunker Chic Hecht Marvin L. White F. W. Farr

Chairman Gibson called the meeting to order, stating that the purpose for this meeting was to take action on the bills for increasing compensation to the counties as follows:

- <u>AB-240</u> Proposed by Messrs. Viani and Tim Hafen. Increases compensation of Mineral County officers.
- <u>AB-308</u> Proposed by Messrs. Prince and Swallow. Increases salaries of Lincoln County officers.
- <u>AB-325</u> Proposed by Mr. Howard. Increases compensation of Humboldt County officers.
- <u>AB-329</u> Proposed by Mr. Swackhamer. Increases compensation of Lander County officers.
- <u>AB-355</u> Proposed by Mr. Swackhamer. Increases compensation of Eureka County officers.
- <u>AB-427</u> Proposed by Messrs. Roy Young and Glaser (By request). Increases salaries of Elko County officers.
- <u>AB-513</u> Proposed by Mr. Getto. Increases compensation of Churchill County officers.
- <u>AB-565</u> Proposed by Mr. Swackhamer. Increases compensation of Pershing County officers.
- <u>AB-566</u> Proposed by Mr. Prince. Increases compensation of White Pine County officers.
- <u>AB-595</u> Proposed by Messrs. Schouweiler, McKissick and Lingenfelter. Increases compensation of Washoe County officers.
- <u>AB-668</u> Proposed by Mr. Dini. Increases compensation of Lyon County officers.

April 22, 1969

- <u>AB-682</u> Proposed by Mr. Jacobsen. Increases compensation of Douglas County officers.
- <u>AB-699</u> Proposed by Mrs. Frazzini, Messrs. Wood, Torvinen, McKissick, Capurro and Fry. Increases compensation of Storey County officers.
- <u>AB-726</u> Proposed by Committee on Government Affairs. Increases compensation of Nye County officers.
- <u>AB-758</u> Proposed by Committee on Government Affairs. Increases compensation of Esmeralda County officers.

The motion on the above listed bills was Amend and Do Pass as Amended, with proper second. The vote for this action was unanimous.

Two additional bills were considered:

<u>AB-675</u> Proposed by Messrs. Bowler, Glaser, Ashworth, Swallow, Bryan Hafen, Howard, Capurro, Lowman and Tim Hafen. Permits county and city governing bodies to enter into lease-purchase agreements for buildings.

The motion was made to Amend and Do Pass, with proper second. Vote for this action was unanimous.

<u>SB-526</u> Proposed by Committee on Federal, State and Local Governments. Fixes annual salaries of elected officers of counties and Carson City.

The motion was made to Amend and Do Pass, with proper second. Vote for this action was unanimous.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Patricia J. Burke

Patricia F. Burke, Committee secretary

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 240—MESSRS. VIANI AND TIM HAFEN

FEBRUARY 11, 1969

Referred to a Select Committee of the Assemblymen from Esmeralda-Nye and Mina Township, and Mineral (Hawthorne and Schurz Townships) Districts

SUMMARY---Increases compensation of Mineral County officers. (BDR S-1201)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT to amend an act entitled "AN ACT fixing the compensation of the county officers of Mineral County, Nevada; regulating the employment and compensation of deputies and other employees of such officers; providing for travel expenses; repealing certain acts in conflict herewith; and providing other matters properly relating thereto," approved April 6, 1959, as amended.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 1 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 439,
 Statutes of Nevada 1959, as last amended by chapter 472, Statutes of
 Nevada 1965, at page 1271, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Section 1. The following named officers of Mineral County, Nevada, shall receive in full payment, for all services rendered by them, the following salaries to be fixed by the board of county commissioners within the minimum and maximum amounts as follows:

1. The sheriff shall receive a salary of not less than [\$6,600] \$9,000 nor more than [\$7,800] \$10,000 per annum.

10 2. The county recorder and ex officio auditor shall receive a salary 11 of not less than [\$6,600] \$9,000 nor more than [\$7,800] \$10,000 per 12 annum.

13 3. The county clerk and ex officio treasurer, clerk of the district court 14 and clerk of the board of county commissioners shall receive a salary of 15 not less than [\$6,600] \$9,000 nor more than [\$7,800] \$10,000 per 16 annum.

17 4. The county assessor shall receive a salary of not less than [\$6,600] 18 \$9,000 nor more than [\$7,800] \$10,000 per annum.

19 5. The district attorney shall receive a salary of not less than [\$6,000] 20 \$8,400 nor more than [\$7,200] \$9,400 per annum.

4

5

6

7

8

9

SEC. 2. Section 2 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 439, Stat-utes of Nevada 1959, as last amended by chapter 472, Statutes of Nevada 1965, at page 1271, is hereby amended to read as follows: Section 2. Each county commissioner of Mineral County, Nevada, shall receive a salary of \$3,000 \$3,600 per annum. SEC. 3. This act shall become effective upon passage and approval. 1 2 3 4 5 6

-,2 -

 $\sim S_{c}$

2) 2) 2) 2**) 4** 2) 3(2) 4

14

" a subar

3 h.

 $\epsilon_{_{T}}^{\flat}$

1000

60

Original bill is on file at the Research Library.

с**т**. ,

1. 5. 5

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 308-MESSRS. PRINCE AND SWALLOW

FEBRUARY 13, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY-Increases salaries of Lincoln County officers. (BDR S-1310)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT to amend an act entitled "An Act concerning Lincoln county officers, providing for the appointment of their deputies, defining the duties of said officers and deputies, and fixing their compensation; and repealing all acts and parts of acts inconsistent with the provisions of this act," approved March 13, 1953, as amended.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 1 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 95,
Statutes of Nevada 1953, as last amended by chapter 420, Statutes of
Nevada 1965, at page 1141, is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 Section 1. The compensation of the respective officers of Lincoln
5 County, Nevada, is hereby fixed as follows, to be allowed, audited and
6 paid semimonthly.

7 The county commissioners shall each receive an annual salary of
8 \$2,640. The sheriff, the county clerk, the county recorder, the county
9 treasurer, the county assessor and the district attorney shall each receive
10 an annual salary of \$6,600.]

11 1. The following-named officers of Lincoln County, Nevada, shall
12 receive the following annual salaries to be fixed by the board of county
13 commissioners by resolution or ordinance from time to time within the
14 minimum and maximum amounts as follows, to be allowed, audited and
15 paid semimonthly:

16 (a) The sheriff shall receive a salary of not less than \$7,200 nor more 17 than \$10,500.

(b) The county assessor shall receive a salary of not less than \$7,200
 nor more than \$10,500.

20 (c) The district attorney shall receive a salary of not less than \$7,200 21 nor more than \$10,500.

(d) The county clerk shall receive a salary of not less than \$7,200 nor
 more than \$10,500.

į

5. The county recorder and ex officio county auditor shall receive a salary of not less than \$7,200 nor more than \$10,500.
6. The county treasurer and ex officio tax receiver shall receive a salary of not less than \$7,200 nor more than \$10,500.
7. Each member of the board of county commissioners shall receive a salary of not less than \$2,640 nor more than \$3,000.

2

المرتبع المراجع (¹ ما م

ĺ

•

3.

a specimi

.....

- *

1

6

3

Original bill is on file at the Research Library.

d Argen

. مر

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 325-MR. HOWARD

FEBRUARY 17, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY—Increases compensation of Humboldt County officers. (BDR S-1247)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT fixing the compensation of county officers of Humboldt County, Nevada; regulating the employment of deputies and other employees of officers; repealing a certain act; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. The county officers of Humboldt County, Nevada, that are named in this act shall be paid salaries, as hereinafter set out, in full 2 3 compensation for their services rendered in the performance of the duties 4 of their respective offices: 5 1. From July 1, 1969, until the 1st Monday in January 1971, the 6 district attorney, sheriff, county clerk and ex officio clerk of the district 7 court of the Sixth Judicial District of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of Humboldt, county treasurer and ex officio tax receiver, county 8 recorder and ex officio county auditor, and county assessor shall each 9 10 receive an annual salary of \$9,000. 2. From and after the 1st Monday in January 1971, the district attor-11 ney, sheriff, county clerk and ex officio clerk of the district court of the 12 Sixth Judicial District of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of 13 Humboldt, county treasurer and ex officio tax receiver, county recorder 14 and ex officio county auditor, and county assessor shall each receive an 15 annual salary of not less than \$9,000 nor more than \$14,000. 16

17 SEC. 2. The county commissioners of Humboldt County shall each be paid:

19 1. From July 1, 1969, until the 1st Monday in January 1971, an
20 annual salary of \$3,600 in full compensation for the services rendered in
21 the performance of their duties.

22 2. From and after the 1st Monday in January 1971, an annual salary
23 of not less than \$3,600 nor more than \$4,800, in full compensation for
24 the services rendered in the performance of their duties.

25 SEC. 3. The officers named in section 1 of this act may each employ a 26 deputy or deputies or other employees for such time and at such salaries 27 as are authorized and specified by the board of county commissioners. In

A. B. 325

1 addition thereto, the district attorney may employ an investigator or inves-2 tigators.

- 2

3 SEC. 4. Except as otherwise provided in this act, the board of county
4 commissioners shall fix the salaries of the officers named in sections 1
5 and 2 of this act by resolution within the limits designated in subsection
6 2 of section 1 and subsection 2 of section 2 of this act.

7 SEC. 5. 1. No county officer's, deputy's or other county employee's
8 salary shall be increased unless such increased salary has been provided
9 for specifically in the county budget.

2. No salary increases or decreases for the county officers named in 10 sections 1 and 2 of this act shall be effective from and after the 1st Mon-11 day in January 1971, unless prior to July 1, 1970, and prior to each 12 July 1 thereafter, the board of county commissioners adopts a resolution 13 increasing or decreasing such salaries. Salaries of the county officers named in sections 1 and 2 of this act may not be increased or decreased 14 15 16 more than 5 percent for any 1 year, such amount of increase or decrease to be based upon the amount of the salary received immediately preced-17 18 ing July 1 of such year.

3. No salary increases or decreases for county officers' deputies and 19 20 other county employees shall be effective from and after July 1, 1969, 21 unless prior to July 1, 1969, and prior to each July 1 thereafter, the 22board of county commissioners adopts a resolution increasing or decreas-23ing such salaries. Salaries of county officers' deputies and other county 24 employees may not be increased or decreased more than 5 percent for 25 any 1 year, such amount of increase or decrease to be based upon the amount of the salary received immediately preceding July 1 of such year. SEC. 6. 1. The county assessor shall be paid for his travel expense 26 27

within and about Humboldt County an additional \$1,000 per year, payable in equal monthly installments.

30 2. All county officers, their deputies and employees shall be paid
31 for necessary travel on county or state business compensation in the
32 amounts fixed by state law for travel expense of state employees, effec33 tive at the time such expense is incurred.

34 3. The county assessor shall not be paid any expense for travel within 35 the county other than the annual amount provided in subsection 1.

36 SEC. 7. All fees collected by the officers named in section 1 of this 37 act shall be paid to the county treasurer without deduction.

SEC. 8. Chapter 310, Statutes of Nevada 1965, at pages 655 and 656, entitled "An Act fixing the compensation of county officers of Humboldt County, Nevada; regulating the employment and compensation of deputies and other employees of officers; repealing certain acts; and providing other matters properly relating thereto," approved April 4, 1965, is hereby repealed.

44 SEC. 9. 1. Sections 5 and 9 of this act shall become effective upon 45 the passage and approval of this act for the purpose only of empowering 46 the board of county commissioners to adopt a resolution prior to July 47 1, 1969, pursuant to the provisions of subsections 1 and 3 of section 5 48 of this act.

49 2. Sections 1 to 4, inclusive, and 6 to 8, inclusive, of this act shall 50 become effective on July 1, 1969.

0

. . . .

Original bill is on file at the Research Library.

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 329-MR. SWACKHAMER

FEBRUARY 17, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY---Increases compensation of Lander County officers. (BDR S-1429)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT fixing the compensation of the county officers of Lander County, Nevada; regulating the employment and compensation of deputies and other employees; repealing certain acts; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. On and after July 1, 1969, each of the officers of Lander 1 County, Nevada, designated in section 2 of this act shall receive an annual salary to be fixed by ordinance enacted by the board of county 2 3 commissioners of Lander County. The board of county commissioners 4 of Lander County shall enact an ordinance or ordinances fixing the 5 6 annual salaries of the officers of Lander County specified in section 1 of 7 this act within the salary ranges specified in section 2 of this act.

í

8 SEC. 2. The annual salary fixed by ordinance as provided in section 1 9 of this act shall: 10

1. Be not less than \$7,800 or more than \$9,600 for the sheriff.

11 2. Be not less than \$7,800 or more than \$9,600 for the county 12assessor.

3. Be not less than \$7,800 or more than \$9,600 for the county 13 recorder and ex officio auditor. 14

4. Be not less than \$7,800 or more than \$9,600 for the county 15 16 treasurer.

17 5. Be not less than \$7,800 or more than \$9,600 for the county clerk. 18 6. Be not less than \$7,800 or more than \$9,600 for the district 19 attorney.

20 7. Be not less than \$3,600 or more than \$4,200 for each county 21 commissioner.

22SEC. 3. 1. The annual salary received by the sheriff shall be com-23pensation in full for all services rendered as sheriff and ex officio license $\mathbf{24}$ collector.

2. The sheriff shall pay into the county treasury each month all 25moneys collected by him as license fees, and as fees in both civil and 26

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 355-MR. SWACKHAMER

FEBRUARY 18, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY-Increases compensation of Eureka County officers. (BDR S-1423)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT fixing the compensation of the county officers of Eureka County, Nevada; regulating the employment and compensation of deputies and other employees; repealing certain acts and acts amendatory thereof; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. From April 1, 1969, until an ordinance is enacted by the 1 2 board of county commissioners of Eureka County, Nevada, pursuant to 3 the provisions of section 2 of this act increasing the annual salaries of the 4 officers of Eureka County, Nevada, designated in this section, such officers 5 shall receive the following annual salaries, to be allowed, audited and fixed 6 monthly: 7 8 Sheriff..... 8,100 County clerk and ex officio county treasurer and ex officio 9 clerk of the district court..... 10 8.100 11 County recorder and ex officio auditor 8,100 12County assessor 8,100 SEC. 2. After April 1, 1969, the board of county commissioners of 13 Eureka County, Nevada, may enact an ordinance or ordinances fixing the 14 annual salaries of the officers of Eureka County, Nevada, specified in 1516 section 1 of this act within the salary ranges specified in section 3 of this 17 act. SEC. 3. The annual salary fixed by ordinance as provided in section 2 18 of this act shall: 19 1. Be not less than \$8,100 or more than \$9,000 for the district 20 21 attorney, if he resides within Eureka County.

Be not less than \$8,100 or more than \$9,000 for the sheriff. 2.

3. Be not less than \$8,100 or more than \$9,000 for the county clerk

22

23and ex officio county treasurer and ex officio clerk of the district court. 24

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 427---MESSRS. ROY YOUNG AND GLASER (By request)

FEBRUARY 24, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY—Increases salaries of Elko County officers. (BDR S-1622)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT to amend an act entitled "An Act fixing the compensation of the county officers of Elko County, Nevada; regulating the employment and compensation of deputies and other employees of such officers; and repealing all acts and parts of acts in conflict herewith," approved March 25, 1957, as amended.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 1 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 205,
 Statutes of Nevada 1957, as last amended by chapter 456, Statutes of
 Nevada 1967, at page 1225, is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 Section 1. The compensation of the respective officers of Elko 5 County, Nevada, herein designated, is hereby fixed as follows, to be 6 allowed, audited and fixed monthly:

7 1. The district attorney shall receive a salary of [\$10,000] \$13,500 8 per annum.

9 2. The sheriff shall receive a salary of [\$11,600] \$15,100 per 10 annum.

3. The county clerk shall receive a salary of [\$10,000] \$13,500 per
annum and such additional fees as may be authorized by county ordinance enacted pursuant to the provisions of subsection 1 of NRS 122.060.
4. The county recorder and ex officio county auditor shall receive a

15 salary of [\$10,000] \$13,500 per annum.
 5. The county assessor shall receive a salary of [\$11,200] \$14,700

17 per annum.

ŧ,

18 6. The county treasurer and ex officio tax receiver shall receive a 19 salary of [\$10,000] \$13,500 per annum.

7. The county commissioners of Elko County shall each receive a salary of [\$3,600] \$4,500 per annum.

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 513-MR. GETTO

FEBRUARY 26, 1969

÷.

C

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY--Increases compensation of Churchill County officers. (BDR S-1653)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT fixing the compensation of the elective officers of Churchill County, Nevada; providing for the appointment of deputies, certain travel expenses and the collection of and accounting for fees; repealing certain acts; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. The following-named officers of Churchill County, 2 Nevada, shall receive in full payment for all services rendered by them 3 the following salaries:

1. From July 1, 1969, to the 1st Monday in January 1971, the sheriff 4 and ex officio license collector shall receive an annual salary of \$8,400, 5 6 and his actual travel expenses in criminal cases. On and after the 1st Monday in January 1971, the sheriff and ex officio license collector shall 7 receive an annual salary of \$9,000, and his actual travel expenses in 8 criminal cases. He shall pay to the county treasurer on or before the 5th 9 day of each month all moneys collected by him from licenses and fees, 10 and shall, at the same time, file with the county treasurer an itemized 11 statement, under oath, of all such licenses and fees collected by him 12 during the month next preceding, and also shall file a duplicate copy 13 thereof with the clerk of the board of county commissioners. 2. From July 1, 1969, to the 1st Monday in January 1971, the county 14

15 recorder and ex officio auditor shall receive an annual salary of \$8,400. On and after the 1st Monday in January 1971, the county recorder and 16 17 ex officio auditor shall receive an annual salary of \$9,000. All fees 18 authorized by law shall be collected by him and paid to the county treas-19 urer on or before the 5th day of each month, and he shall, at the 20 same time, prepare and file with the county treasurer a full and accurate 21 itemized statement, under oath, of all such fees collected by him in his 22official capacity during the month next preceding, and shall also file a 23 duplicate copy thereof with the clerk of the board of county commis-24 25 sioners.

3. From July 1, 1969, to the 1st Monday in January 1971, the county assessor shall receive an annual salary of \$8,400. On and after the 1st Monday in January 1971, the county assessor shall receive an annual 3 salary of \$9,000. 4

4. From July 1, 1969, to the 1st Monday in January 1971, the county clerk and ex officio clerk of the board of county commissioners and ex officio clerk of the county board of equalization and ex officio county treasurer shall receive an annual salary of \$8,400. On and after the 1st Monday in January 1971, he shall receive an annual salary of

6 7

8 9

10

25 26

27

28 29

\$9,000.
5. From July 1, 1969, to the 1st Monday in January 1971, the district attorney shall receive an annual salary of \$8,400. On and after the 11 12 1st Monday in January 1971, the district attorney shall receive an annual salary of \$9,000. He shall be allowed his actual expenses when called 13 14 from the county seat in the discharge of the official duties of the district 15 attorney. 16

6. From July 1, 1969, to the 1st Monday in January 1971, each 17 county commissioner shall receive an annual salary of \$3,450. On and 18 after the 1st Monday in January 1971, each county commissioner shall 19 20 receive an annual salary of \$3,900.

SEC. 2. Each of the officers designated in subsections 1 to 5, inclusive, 21 of section 1 of this act shall be entitled to appoint such deputies and assistants as may be authorized by the board of county commissioners 22 23 for such time and at such salary as the board may specify. 24

SEC. 3. The salaries provided for in section 1 of this act shall be payable in 12 equal installments. The county auditor shall on the first day of each month draw a warrant on the salary fund in favor of each of the officers named in section 1 of this act for the last preceding month, and the county treasurer shall pay the warrants out of such fund.

SEC. 4. Chapter 193, Statutes of Nevada 1963, entitled "An Act fix-30 ing the minimum and maximum salary limitations for officers of Churchill 31 County, Nevada; providing for the appointment of deputies; providing for 32 certain travel expenses; and providing for the collection and accounting 33 of fees; to repeal chapter 316, Statutes of Nevada 1953, as amended, relating to compensation and fees of Churchill County officers; and 34 35 providing other matters properly relating thereto," approved April 2, 1963, as amended, and all acts amendatory thereof, are hereby repealed. 36 37

More 200

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 565-MR. SWACKHAMER

MARCH 3, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY—Increases compensation of Pershing County officers. (BDR S-1643)

1.10

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT to amend an act entitled "An Act fixing the compensation of the county officers of Pershing County, Nevada; empowering the board of county commissioners of Pershing County, Nevada, to authorize the employment of deputies, clerks and assistants by county officers and providing for the allowance of compensation for such employment; repealing all acts and parts of acts in conflict herewith; and providing other matters properly relating thereto," approved April 10, 1963, as amended.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 1 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 309,
 Statutes of Nevada 1963, as last amended by chapter 313, Statutes of
 Nevada 1967, at page 872, is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 Section 1. 1. The compensation of the respective officers of Pershing County, Nevada, herein designated, is hereby fixed as follows, and 6 shall be allowed, audited and paid monthly:

a shall be allowed, audited and paid monthly:
(a) Until January 1, [1969,] 1970, the county commissioners shall
each receive a salary of [\$2,700] \$3,000 per annum, and mileage. On
and after January 1, [1969,] 1970, the county commissioners shall each
receive a salary of not more than [\$3,000] \$3,600 per annum, and
mileage.

(b) Until January 1, [1969,] 1970, the county clerk, as such, and as
ex officio county treasurer shall receive a salary of [\$7,500] \$7,900 per
annum. On and after January 1, [1969,] 1970, the county clerk, as such,
and as ex officio county treasurer shall receive a salary of not less than
[\$7,000] \$7,900 nor more than [\$7,900] \$9,600 per annum.

and as ex officio county treasurer shall receive a salary of not less than
[\$7,000] \$7,900 nor more than [\$7,900] \$9,600 per annum.
(c) Until January 1, [1969,] 1970, the sheriff shall receive a salary
of [\$7,500] \$7,900 per annum. On and after January 1, [1969,] 1970,
the sheriff shall receive a salary of not less than [\$7,000] \$7,900 nor
more than [\$7,900] \$9,600 per annum.

(d) Until January 1, [1969,] 1970, the county assessor shall receive a salary of [\$7,500] \$7,900 per annum. On and after January 1,

county assessor shall receive a salary of not less than [\$7,000] \$7,500 2

nor more than [\$7,900] \$9,600 per annum. (e) Until [January] July 1, 1969, the county recorder, as such, and 3 as ex officio county auditor shall receive a salary of \$7,500 per annum. On and after [January] July 1, 1969, the county recorder, as such, and as ex officio county auditor shall receive a salary of not less than [\$7,000] 4 5 6 \$7,500 nor more than [\$7,900] \$9,600 per annum. (f) Until [January] July 1, 1969, the district attorney shall receive a

7

8 9 salary of \$7,500 per annum. On and after [January] July 1, 1969, the district attorney shall receive a salary of not less than [\$7,000] \$7,500 10 nor more than [\$7,900] \$9,600 per annum. 11

2. Salaries of the county officers named in subsection 1 may not be 12 13 increased or decreased more than 5 percent for any 1 year, such amount 14 of increase or decrease to be based upon the amount of the salary 15 received immediately preceding January 1 of such year.

3. The board of county commissioners of Pershing County is hereby authorized and directed to allow such compensation as may be necessary 16 17 for the payment of such deputies, clerks and assistants as the board of 18 county commissioners may from time to time authorize in the offices of 19 20 the county clerk and county treasurer, county recorder and county auditor, sheriff, county assessor and district attorney, respectively, and such 21 compensation shall be allowed and paid as other claims against the 22 23 county.

24 [3.] 4. Except as otherwise provided in this act, the board of county 25 commissioners shall fix the salaries by resolution within the limits as 26 designated above.

SEC. 2. This act shall become effective upon passage and approval. 27

Original bill is on file at the Research Library.

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 566-MR. PRINCE

March 3, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY—Increases compensation of White Pine County officers. (BDR S-1405)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT to amend an act entitled "An Act fixing the minimum and maximum salary limitations for certain White Pine County officers; providing for the appointment of deputies and for travel expenses; to repeal chapter 239, Statutes of Nevada 1963, relating to compensation and fees of White Pine County officers; and providing other matters properly relating thereto," approved April 13, 1965.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. Section 1 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 392, 2 Statutes of Nevada 1965, at page 1019, is hereby amended to read as 3 follows:

4 Section 1. The following officers of White Pine County, Nevada, 5 shall receive in full payment for all services rendered by them the follow-6 ing salaries to be fixed by resolution *or ordinance* of the majority of the 7 board of county commissioners of White Pine County *from time to time* 8 within the minimum and maximum amounts as follows:

9 1. Each county commissioner shall receive an annual salary of 10 \$3,600, payable in equal monthly installments, which shall be in full 11 compensation for all services whatsoever required of such commissioner. 12 Each county commissioner shall be allowed all his actual and necessary 13 traveling expenses in the performance of his official duties.

2. The sheriff shall receive a salary of not less than [\$9,000] 14 \$10,800 nor more than [\$9,600] \$14,800 per annum. The annual salary 15 of the sheriff as fixed by the board of county commissioners shall, within 16the minimum and maximum amounts herein authorized, always exceed 17 by at least \$600 the highest annual salary fixed by the board of county 18 commissioners for any of the officers named in subsections 3 to 7, inclu-sive, of this section. The salary herein provided for shall be payable in 19 2021equal monthly installments as full compensation of his services to the 22county as sheriff or in any ex officio capacity of any kind whatsoever.

The sheriff shall collect for all services in his office and pay over monthly into the county treasury of White Pine County such fees as are provided for [in NRS 248.290,] by law, but in lieu of mileage [provided in NRS 248.290,] if provided by law, the sheriff shall charge and collect as mileage the actual and necessary travel expenses of himself or deputies in the 5 service of any summons and complaint or other process issuing out of 6 the district court, and where there is a deputy or other officer so located 7 8 as to perform such service without the sheriff or his deputy actually 9 incurring any travel expenses, no mileage shall be charged. In all cases herein, where the deputy sheriff resides away from the county seat and 10 is required in the performance of a duty or duties of his office to use his 11 12 own or a privately owned car in connection with such duty or duties, he shall receive therefor the sum of not to exceed 10 cents per mile for each 13 mile necessarily traveled in the performance of any such duty or duties. Such claim for mileage shall be first audited and allowed by the board of 14 15 county commissioners. 16

3. The county assessor shall receive a salary of not less than
\$\$\$,400] \$10,200 nor more than \$\$\$9,000] \$14,000 per annum. The
salary herein provided for shall be payable in equal monthly installments.
The county assessor shall collect and pay over into the county treasury
of White Pine County all such fees and taxes as are now provided for
by law.

4. The county recorder and auditor shall receive a salary of not less than [\$8,400] \$10,200 nor more than [\$9,000] \$14,000 per annum.
The salary herein provided for shall be payable in equal monthly installments. The county recorder and auditor shall collect and pay over into the county treasury of White Pine County all such fees as are now provided for by law.

5. The county clerk shall receive a salary of not less than [\$8,400]
\$10,200 nor more than [\$9,000] \$14,000 per annum. The salary herein
provided for shall be payable in equal monthly installments. The county
clerk shall collect and pay over into the county treasury of White Pine
County all such fees as are now provided for by law.

6. The county treasurer and ex officio tax collector shall receive a salary of not less than [\$8,400] \$10,200 nor more than [\$9,000] \$14,000 per annum. The salary herein provided for shall be payable in equal monthly installments. The county treasurer and ex officio tax collector shall collect and pay over into the county treasury of White Pine County all such fees and taxes as are now provided for by law.

40 7. The district attorney and public administrator shall receive a salary of not less than [\$8,400] \$10,200 nor more than [\$9,000] \$14,000 per annum. The salary herein provided for shall be payable in equal monthly installments. The district attorney and public administrator may, in addition, have or retain all fees allowed by law as public administrator.

100

Original bill is on file at the Research Library.

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 595-MESSRS. SCHOUWEILER, McKISSICK AND LINGENFELTER

March 4, 1969 ------

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY-Increases compensation of Washoe County officers. (BDR S-1718)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT fixing the compensation of certain elected officers of Washoe County, Nevada; providing for travel expenses of certain officers; repealing a certain act; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

ł

ſ

ĺ

$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 4 \\ 5 \\ 6 \end{array} $	SECTION 1. Until an ordinance is enacted by the board of county commissioners of Washoe County, Nevada, pursuant to the provisions of section 2 of this act increasing the annual salaries of the officers of Washoe County, Nevada, designated in this section, such officers shall receive the following annual salaries, to be allowed, audited and fixed monthly:
	District attorney\$18,000
7 8 9	County clerk and ex officio clerk of the district court
ğ	and of the board of county commissioners
10	County assessor
11	Sheriff
$\overline{12}$	County treasurer and ex officio tax collector
13	County recorder and auditor
14	SEC. 2. After the effective date of this act, the board of county com-
15	missioners of Washoe County, Nevada, may enact an ordinance or ordi-
16	nances fixing the annual salaries of the officers of Washoe County,
17	Nevada, specified in section 1 of this act within the salary ranges specified
18	in section 3 of this act.
19	SEC. 3. The annual salary fixed by ordinance as provided in section
20	2 of this act shall:
21	1. Be not less than \$18,000 or more than \$30,000 for the district
22	attorney.
23	2. Be not less than \$15,000 or more than \$20,000 for the county
24	clerk and ex officio clerk of the district court and of the board of county
25	commissioners.

Original bill is <u>3</u> pages long. Contact the Research Library for a copy of the complete bill.

1

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 668-MR. DINI

MARCH 11, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY—Increases compensation of Lyon County officers. (BDR S-1817)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *Italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT fixing the compensation of the county officers of Lyon County, Nevada; regulating the employment and compensation of deputies and other employees of county officers; repealing certain acts; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

1 2 3 4 5	SECTION 1. Until an ordinance is enacted or a resolution adopted by the board of county commissioners of Lyon County, Nevada, pursuant to the provisions of section 3 of this act increasing the annual salaries of the officers of Lyon County, Nevada, designated in this section, such officers shall receive the following annual salaries in full compensation for all ser-
6	vices rendered by them:
6 7	District attorney \$9,000
8	Sheriff
8 9	County assessor
10	County clerk, ex officio county treasurer, ex officio clerk
11	of the district court and of the board of county com-
12	missioners
13	County recorder and ex officio county auditor
14	County commissioners, each
15	SEC. 2. Until an ordinance is enacted or a resolution adopted by the
16	board of county commissioners of Lyon County, Nevada, pursuant to
17	the provisions of section 4 of this act increasing the annual salaries of the
18	undersheriff and the first deputies of the county assessor, the county
19	clerk and the county recorder, the undersheriff and the first deputies of
20	the county assessor, the county clerk and the county recorder shall each
21	receive an annual salary of \$7,800.
22	SEC. 3. 1. After the effective date of this act, the board of county
23	commissioners of Lyon County, Nevada, may enact an ordinance or ordi-
24	nances or adopt a resolution or resolutions fixing the annual salaries of
25	the officers of Lyon County Nevada, specified in section 1 of this act
26	within the salary ranges specified in subsection 2 of this section.
A STREET	

(REPRINTED WITH ADOPTED AMENDMENTS) FIRST REPRINT A. B. 682

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 682-MR. JACOBSEN

MARCH 13, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY-Increases compensation of Douglas County officers. (BDR S-1807)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT to amend an act entitled "An Act fixing the salaries of and providing for the reimbursement for travel of certain officers of Douglas County, Nevada; providing that the board of county commissioners shall fix the salaries of certain deputies and clerical employees of the county; repealing all acts and parts of acts in conflict herewith; and providing other matters properly relating thereto," approved March 21, 1953, as amended.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 1 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 183,
 Statutes of Nevada 1953, as last amended by chapter 39, Statutes of
 Nevada 1967, at page 68, is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 Section 1. The following-named officers of Douglas County, Nevada, 5 shall receive, in full payment for all services rendered by them, the fol-6 lowing salaries:

 $\overline{7}$ The sheriff shall receive the sum of \$9,000 per annum, and mileage at the rate of 10 cents per mile when traveling by private conveyance in the performance of his official duties in the county. The sheriff may, with the 8 9 consent and approval of the board of county commissioners, appoint one 10 undersheriff, one or more lieutenants, one or more sergeants and one or 11 12more deputy sheriffs, who shall receive such salaries and mileage as shall be fixed, from time to time, by the board of county commissioners. Such 13 salaries shall be in full payment for all services performed by the sheriff, 14 15 undersheriff, lieutenants, sergeants and deputies.] The officers of Douglas County, Nevada, named in sections 1.5 to 5, inclusive, and section 7 of 16 this act shall receive, in full payment for all services rendered by them, 17 18 the salaries specified in sections 1.5 to 5, inclusive, and section 7 of this 19 act.

SEC. 2. The above-entitled act, being chapter 183, Statutes of Nevada
1953, at page 213, is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section
designated section 1.5, which shall immediately follow section 1 and
shall read as follows:

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 699-MRS. FRAZZINI, MESSRS. WOOD, TORVINEN, MCKISSICK, CAPURRO AND FRY

MARCH 14, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY---Increases compensation of Storey County officers. (BDR S-1736)

EXPLANATION-Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT to amend an act entitled "An Act fixing the compensation of the county officers of Storey County, Nevada, and regulating the employment and compensation of deputies and other employees of such offices, and repealing all acts and parts of acts in conflict herewith," approved March 12, 1957, as amended.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. Section 2 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 75, $\mathbf{2}$ Statutes of Nevada 1957, as last amended by chapter 490, Statutes of 3 Nevada 1967, at page 1343, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Section 2. The district attorney of Storey County, Nevada, shall 4 receive a salary of not less than [\$6,300] \$7,200 or more than [\$8,400] \$9,000 per annum for all his services as such officer. He may, with the consent of the board of county commissioners, employ: [one]

5

6

7

13

14 15

8 1. One deputy who shall receive a salary to be fixed by the board of 9 county commissioners. [He may, with the consent of the board of county commissioners, employ one 10

2. One person to act as his secretary, to be paid [at] a salary fixed 11 by the board of county commissioners. 12

Section 3 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 75, Statutes SEC. 2. of Nevada 1957, as last amended by chapter 490, Statutes of Nevada 1967, at page 1344, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Section 3. 1. The sheriff for services as such and chief of police of 16all the unincorporated towns within Storey County, Nevada, shall receive 17 a salary of not less than [\$6,300] \$8,000 or more than [\$8,400] \$10,-18 000 per annum. 19

The sheriff shall act as chief of police of all the unincorporated 202. towns within Storey County, Nevada, without additional compensation as 21provided herein, and notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 269.235 or 22any other statutes, the board of county commissioners shall not appoint 23 a chief of police for such unincorporated towns. 24

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 726—COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS

March 20, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY—Increases compensation of Nye County officers. (BDR S-1856)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT to amend an act entitled "An Act fixing the minimum and maximum salary limitations for certain Nye County officers; providing for the appointment of deputies, assistants, clerks and stenographers; providing for travel expenses; to repeal chapter 26, Statutes of Nevada 1953, as amended, relating to the compensation and fees of Nye County officers; and providing other matters properly relating thereto," approved April 13, 1965.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. Section 1 of the above-entitled act, being chapter 423, 2 Statutes of Nevada 1965, at page 1143, is hereby amended to read as 3 follows:

4 Section 1. Beginning on July 1, **[**1967,**]** *1969*, the following officers 5 of Nye County, Nevada, shall receive in full payment for all services 6 rendered by them salaries to be fixed by resolution of the board of county 7 commissioners of Nye County within minimum and maximum amounts 8 as follows:

9 The sheriff shall receive a salary of not less than \$7,200 nor more 1. 10 than [\$9,000] \$10,800 per annum, payable in equal monthly install-11 ments as full compensation for his services to the county as sheriff or in any ex officio capacity of any kind whatsoever. He shall have one under-sheriff, to be selected by him, and such other deputies and employees, to be selected by him, as the board of county commissioners may deem 121314 necessary, who shall receive such compensation as the board may direct. 15The sheriff shall collect for all services in his office, and pay over monthly 16 into the county treasury, such fees as are provided for in NRS 248.290, 17 except that in lieu of the mileage provided in NRS 248.290 the sheriff 18 shall charge and collect as mileage the actual and necessary traveling 19expenses of himself or deputies in the service of any summons and com-20plaints, or other process issuing out of the district court, and, that where 21there is a deputy or other officer so located as to perform such service, 22

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 758—COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS

MARCH 28, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY—Increases compensation of Esmeralda County officers. (BDR S-1908)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT fixing the compensation of the county officers of Esmeralda County, Nevada; regulating the employment and compensation of deputies and other employees of county officers; repealing certain acts; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. On and after July 1, 1969, the board of county commis-2 sioners of Esmeralda County, Nevada, may enact an ordinance or ordi-3 nances fixing the annual salaries of the officers of Esmeralda County, 4 Nevada, within the salary ranges specified in section 2 of this act.

5 SEC. 2. The annual salary fixed by ordinance as provided in section 1 6 of this act shall be:

Not less than \$7,200 or more than \$12,000 for the district attorney
if he resides within Esmeralda County.

9 2. Not less than \$7,200 or more than \$12,000 for the sheriff and 10 ex officio county assessor.

3. Not less than \$7,200 or more than \$12,000 for the county clerk
and ex officio county treasurer and ex officio clerk of the district court.
4. Not less than \$7,200 or more than \$12,000 for the county recorder
and ex officio county auditor.

15 SEC. 3. Each county commissioner of Esmeralda County shall 16 receive:

17 1. An annual salary of \$4,200; and

18 2. Ten cents per mile in going to and from the county seat when 19 attending the regular monthly meetings and as member of the county 20 board of equalization and as a member of the board of canvassers.

SEC. 4. 1. If the district attorney does not reside in Esmeralda County he shall receive an annual salary of \$4,800, for all his services as such officer, and no travel expenses or per diem allowances shall be paid him for traveling from his place of residence to the county seat to

(REPRINTED WITH ADOPTED AMENDMENTS) FIRST REPRINT A. B. 675

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 675—MESSRS. BOWLER, GLASER, ASH-WORTH, SWALLOW, BRYAN HAFEN, HOWARD, CAPURRO, LOWMAN AND TIM HAFEN

March 12, 1969

Referred to Committee on Government Affairs

SUMMARY—Permits county and city governing bodies to enter into lease-purchase agreements for buildings. (BDR 27-730)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT relating to public buildings; permitting governing bodies to enter into lease-purchase agreements for buildings; permitting the conveyance of property for such purpose; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Chapter 334 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section which shall read as follows:

1. The governing body of any county or incorporated city may enter into an agreement with a corporation incorporated to advance civic interests in a city or county, under the provisions of NRS 81.350 to 81.400, inclusive, whereby the corporation agrees to construct a building or other facility according to specifications adopted by such governing body and thereupon enter into a lease-purchase agreement with such governing body for such building or facility.

10 2. Any such governing body may convey property to such a corporation where the purpose of such conveyance is the entering into an 12 agreement contemplated by subsection 1.

Original bill is on file at the Research Library.

(REPRINTED WITH ADOPTED AMENDMENTS) S. B. 526 FIRST REPRINT

SENATE BILL NO. 526-COMMITTEE ON FEDERAL. STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

April 9, 1969

Referred to Committee on Federal, State and Local Governments

SUMMARY—Fixes annual salaries of elected officers of counties and Carson City. (BDR 20-1971)

EXPLANATION—Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT fixing the annual salaries of the elected officers of the counties of this state and Carson City on and after January 4, 1971; repealing certain acts; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Chapter 245 of NRS is hereby amended by adding 1 thereto a new section which shall read as follows: 2 3

4

(

1

As used in this section:
 (a) "County" includes Carson City.

(b) "County commissioner" includes the mayor and supervisors of 5 6 Carson City.

7 2. On and after January 4, 1971, the elected officers of the counties of this state shall receive annual salaries in the amounts specified in the 8 following table. Such annual salaries shall not be increased or diminished 9 during the term for which such county officers have been elected. The 10 annual salaries shall be in full payment for all services required by law 11 to be performed by such officers. Except as otherwise provided by law, all 12fees and commissions collected by such officers in the performance of 13 their duties shall be paid into the county treasury each month without 14 15 deduction of any nature.